
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, April 20, 2022

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

22-0477 Common Council Meeting Minutes of April 6, 2022

 

CC Minutes 4-6-22.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

22-0486 Board & Commission Reappointments 

 

April 2022 Misc Committee Reappts Memo.pdfAttachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

22-0315 Public Hearing on the proposed amendment of Article X of Chapter 23 of 

the Municipal Code, relating to Floodplain Zoning.

 

Notice of Public Hearing TA 1-22 Floodplain Ch. 23.pdfAttachments:

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21027
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3f0c8412-8199-4672-9be1-a21bec7a3326.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21036
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=32461007-5a87-4226-8efa-077d31491184.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20865
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=79a01224-91d4-44ee-b694-60193704e391.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

22-0423 Request from All Tied up for a street occupancy permit to place tables and 

chairs in the College Avenue beautification strip at 324 E. College Avenue.

 

All Tied Up Floral Cafe.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0424 Request from Hilton Appleton Paper Valley Hotel to extend their street 

occupancy permit for dumpsters on College Avenue (Meters CAW 301, 

303 & 305) through April 30, 2022.

 

Hilton Appleton Paper Valley-dumpsters.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0425 Request from Hilton Appleton Paper Valley Hotel for a street occupancy 

permit for a construction container on the Superior Street side of 333 W. 

College Avenue through May 31, 2022.

 

Hilton Appleton Paper Valley-storage container.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0426 Approve Inter Governmental Agreement with Outagamie County for the 

CTH JJ (Lightning Drive to Cherryvale Avenue) Reconstruction Project.

 

CTH JJ-Lightning Dr to Cherryvale Ave.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0427 Approve Inter Governmental Agreement with Outagamie County for the 

CTH E & EE (CTH JJ to Applehill Boulevard) Reconstruction Project.

 

CTH E & EE.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20973
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02f3467b-269c-4d9c-a884-6d6a70a54212.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20974
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3c414573-7ed4-4f8c-90fe-47c9e91e6f41.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20975
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ab1bd9fc-30d6-4c6b-b7d3-50ab2f304fa8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20976
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a662f4ad-638c-455d-af39-b8f29151206e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20977
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=210e9414-73ac-492b-8b67-e0c09c6f0e02.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

22-0428 Approve designation of 9 parking stalls in the Red Ramp for the Hilton 

Hotel.

 

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0455 Approve parking restriction change on the 400 block of W. College 

Avenue.  Follow-up to Six-Month Trial Period.

 

400 block of W College Ave.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0456 Approve parking restriction change on the 300/400 block of N. Division 

Street.  Follow-Up to Six-Month Trial Period.

 

300-400 block of N Division St.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0457 Approve request from Creative Downtown Appleton Inc. to install a parklet 

on the west side of N. State Street at parking stalls #178 and #179 per the 

On-Street Parklet Policy.

 

Parklet-N State St.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

22-0462 Alcohol License Revocation Hearing for Core's Lounge, LLC - Kor Xiong, 

Agent

 

Core's Lounge Complaint 3-29-22.pdf

Core's Lounge Lic. Status Letter.pdf

Core's Lounge Summons.pdf

Core's Lounge Revocation Hearing Exhibits 1-17 (No 10).pdf

Core's Lounge Revocation Hearing- Report to the Common Council.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20978
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21005
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a6a6b2cb-9d1f-4a3d-85b8-392129faec42.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21006
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ddacc43f-cfee-4e7f-b3be-e675e05cf14f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21007
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0a80210d-b807-49a5-b794-d0e8ba0db18c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21012
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4b4f04cc-3f27-4f4f-a0a9-8beb312e4c13.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f31cc3b4-a3cb-4a9e-98bf-e37197848ec9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4e02e3d3-83d4-48da-8798-0102d10166b8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36a18cbf-0610-4c0c-8c4c-6d2c3c865d75.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c30f07cb-3065-4c92-b6c4-3c7be459f7fc.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

The Report to the Common Council, including the Findings of Fact and 

Conclusions of Law and Recommendation to Revoke Core's Lounge, LLC 

combination alcohol license was approved.

22-0454 Request to Purchase Fire Truck via Sole Source.

 

04-06-22_Sole_Source_Engine.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0232 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License application for All Tied Up 

Floral Cafe LLC d/b/a All Tied Up Floral Cafe, Aaron Phillipson, Agent, 

located at 324 E College Ave, contingent upon approval from the 

Community Development, Health, Public Works and Inspections 

departments.

All Tied Up Floral Cafe.pdf

Resolution_324ECollegeAve_SUP#3-22_SIGNED.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0363 Class "B" Beer and "Class C" Wine License application for Area 509 LLC 

d/b/a Area 509, Reginald Desamour, Agent, located at 1025 N Badger 

Ave, contingent upon approval from the Community Development and 

Health departments.

Area 509.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0375 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Tipsy Taco & Tequila Bar LLC d/b/a Tipsy Taco & Tequila Bar, Sarah J 

Gregory, Agent, located at 127 S Memorial Dr, contingent upon approval 

from the Community Development, Health and Inspections departments.  

Tipsy Taco & Tequila Bar.pdf

Resolution_127SMemorialDr_SUP#2-22_SIGNED.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21004
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0928c8e-4f27-44db-bf77-f7cbc69ce93a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20782
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e34888c1-b205-438e-ba5d-af800851a83e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c9e218f-0383-4876-ac9c-7499a95d152a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20913
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=da15109c-5d83-4291-a95b-2b9661a94dcb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20925
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b641d170-09a7-4905-8c78-c55e5c3aab65.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=05cec537-31d5-42e6-879c-23f19f9dfecf.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

22-0410 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Change of Agent application 

for GT Limited d/b/a Rascals Bar & Grill, Karen Blodgett, New Agent, 

located at 702 E Wisconsin Ave.

Karen A Blodgett S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0415 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Change of Agent application 

for Urban Modern Kitchen LLC d/b/a Urban Modern Kitchen, Regina R 

Hueckman, New Agent, located at 800 E Wisconsin Ave.

Regina R Hueckman -2nd S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0416 "Class A" Liquor License application for Kedaar LLC d/b/a Appleton 

Clark, Lekha Timilsaina, Agent, located at 1200 W Wisconsin Ave, 

contingent upon approval from the Finance and Inspections departments.

Appleton Clark.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

22-0417 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor Temporary Premise Amendment for 

Dairyland Brew Pub, Dorri Schmidt, Agent, located at 1216 E Wisconsin 

Ave, contingent upon approval from the Fire, Health, Inspections and 

Police departments.

Dairyland Brew Pub S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

22-0349 Request to approve Zoning Ordinance Text and Map Amendments to 

Article X Floodplain Zoning of Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code relating to 

Section 23-205(b)(2) General provisions; Official maps and revisions; 

Official maps based on other studies, as identified in the attached staff 

report

StaffReport_AmendFloodplainOrd_AppleFields_CLOMR_For03-23-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

3/23/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on April 20, 2022.

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20960
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b178a68b-9b76-4fe1-aa68-90936cc0a655.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20965
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ce5379ac-49cb-4d59-8a67-4ce159a50c6c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20966
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9ef9599f-6e39-45f7-a4e5-953571cf472c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20967
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=44085eb5-548f-482c-b632-6dd0e21882c2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20899
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e888cf65-aab6-4b79-a896-7f5dc10815b7.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

22-0447 Request to approve Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant with alcohol 

sales and service located at 1103 West College Avenue (Tax Id 

#31-3-1064-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan of 

operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached staff 

report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council 

required for approval)

StaffReport_1103WCollegeAve_SUP_For04-13-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/13/22 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

22-0485 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendment:

CEA Replacement Fund

Debt Proceeds +$345,000

CEA Replacement +$410,800

Vehicles +$755,800

To purchase a PUC Engine using debt proceeds and available CEA 

replacement funds (2/3 vote of Council required)

 

2022 Fire Truck Purchase.pdf

04-06-22_Sole_Source_Engine.pdf

Attachments:

22-0461 Request approval to award the Sole Source Purchase of Grit Classifier 

System #2 Rebuild Parts through Saveco North America Inc in the amount 

of $37,936

 

Grit Classifer Rebuild Work.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20997
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4435dfdb-47d4-4669-b9ca-3828f2930293.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21035
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e31aa0c5-5542-4f3b-9999-3748938cb3fe.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a1e363de-487a-4831-a75e-0e64947884fc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21011
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=607da07f-0251-4245-aaa0-ee44f92a82ee.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

22-0463 Request to award the Wastewater Treatment Plant Sludge Thickening 

Building fire alarm system alterations contract to Faith Technologies in the 

amount of $28,160 along with the following 2022 Budget adjustment:

Wastewater Sludge Thickening Bldg Fire Alarm CIP proj +$28,160

Wastewater Utility Belt Filter project - $28,160

to transfer available funds from the Wastewater Utility Belt Filter project to 

the new Wastewater Sludge Thickening Building Fire Alarm modification 

CIP project

 

2022 AWWTP Fire Alarm System Alterations.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-0464 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendments:

Water

Distribution Operations and Maintenance +$43,850

Distribution Capital Improvements - $43,850

Wastewater

Collection Systems +$40,000

Public Works Capital Improvements - $40,000

Stormwater

Facility Maintenance +$90,000

Capital Construction - $90,000

General Fund

Street Repair +$15,000

Sidewalk Construction - $15,000

to reclassify capital budget funds to operations budgets for miscellaneous 

concrete and street repair costs (2/3 vote of Council required) 

 

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-0465 Request to award Unit J-22 Mini Storm Sewer Construction to Alfson 

Excavating, LLC in an amount not to exceed $200,000

 

Award of Contract Unit J-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21013
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8c4db18f-d139-431d-86af-2ac2acfb192d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21014
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21015
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=924e80b8-4ef1-4aa4-84ad-fb288798b826.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

22-0466 Request to award Unit X-22 Sewer & Water Main Reconstruction No. 2 to 

Kruczek Construction, Inc in the amount of $877,778 with a 7.5% 

contingency of $65,833 for a project total not to exceed $943,611

 

Award of Contract Unit X-22.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

22-0468 Request to approve Contract Amendment / Change Order No. 1 to contract 

11-22, Unit W-22 Sewer and Water Reconstruction No. 1 for the addition of 

ARPA funding to facilitate removal and replacement of public-side lead 

water services encountered during water main reconstruction in the amount 

of $20,000 resulting in no change to contract contingency.  Overall contract 

increases from $1,469,167 to $1,489,167

 

Unit W-22 Change Order No. 1.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/22 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

22-0449 Approval to single source and award 2022E Stormwater Consulting 

Services Contract for assistance with the Interstate 41 Reconstruction 

Project to Brown and Caldwell in an amount not to exceed $30,000.

 

2022E Single Source 41 Reconstruction BC award.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/12/22 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

Page 8 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21016
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f972bdd5-ac90-482c-8302-47ab3b766ddb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21018
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f876369a-7c78-4af0-b320-e0cb5070173f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20999
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2d98dc4d-5694-41e1-8dd2-68c45e360b83.pdf


April 20, 2022Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final-revised

22-0478 Ordinances #27-22 to #33-22

Ordinances to Council 4-20-22.pdfAttachments:

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. CLOSED SESSION

22-0487 The Common Council may go into closed session pursuant to State 

Statute §19.85(1)(a) for the purpose of deliberating the revocation of an 

alcohol license and then reconvene into open session.

 

T. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 9 City of Appleton Printed on 4/19/2022

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21028
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=19afecc6-478b-4c37-acd6-6ba17fe5cc58.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=21037


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, April 6, 2022

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Martin.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor 

Jake Woodford

Present: 16 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

22-0411 Common Council Meeting Minutes of March 16, 2022

 

CC Minutes 3-16-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Minutes be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20961
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a562ebf1-570c-434f-afee-bbb21c40b16a.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

22-0418 Recognition of poems selected for the 2022 Sidewalk Poetry Program

The 2022 Sidewalk Poems were read.

22-0419 Proclamations

 -  Arbor Day

 -  Library Week

 -  Public Health Week

 -  Autism Acceptance Month

 -  Earth Day 

 -  Golden Rule Day

 

Arbor Day Proclamation.pdf

Library Week Proclamation.pdf

Public Health Week Proclamation.pdf

Autism Acceptance Month Proclamation.pdf

Earth Day Proclamation.pdf

Golden Rule Day Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

22-0332 Public Hearing on Special Resolution 2-P-22; Sanitary Laterals, Storm 

Laterals, and Storm Main

Alvin St (Wisconsin to Marquette)

Durkee St (Lawrence St to College Ave)

Durkee St (College to Washington)

Lawrence St (Oneida St to Durkee St)

Morrison St (Lawrence St, s-o to College Ave)

Morrison St (College to Washington)

Oneida St (Lawrence St to College Ave)

2-P-22 Public Hearing Notice.pdfAttachments:

The following spoke during the hearing:

Paul Rieckmann, 1731 N Alvin Street

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20968
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20969
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ef1ac606-1b1e-4b41-86f8-d9263420fbe5.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36330ce6-8d68-441b-8193-b7113e16bcd3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=29297cb1-2398-4c3c-84ab-f1b2b86f986b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1c8480e0-48f8-4360-832d-a139f7a7029f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=12b39022-d118-4f82-ad42-ab712d811b8e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8ec9e00f-ae98-434e-b178-16fb63ab8355.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20882
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=459396f6-9ef7-45ec-a68f-0068649c7128.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0316 Public Hearing for Rezoning #2-22 for 217 S. Badger Avenue from C-2 

General Commercial to C-1 Neighborhood Mixed Use.

 

RZ #2_22 Notice of Public Hearing.pdfAttachments:

The Public Hearing was held.  No one spoke during the hearing.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

22-0333 Final Resolution 2-P-22; Sanitary Laterals, Storm Laterals, and Storm 

Main

 

Final Resolution 2-P-22 Sanitary Laterals, Storm Laterals, Storm 

Main.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Resolution be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

22-0347 Request to approve Special Use Permit #4-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service, and associated outdoor seating area, located 

at 1025 North Badger Avenue (Tax Id #31-5-2090-00), as shown on the 

attached maps and per attached plan of operation, to run with the land 

subject to the conditions in the attached staff report and approve attached 

Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council required for approval)

StaffReport_1025NBadgerAve_SUP_For3-23-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Prohaska, that the 

Special Use Permit be amended to add an additional condition:

7. Applicant shall construct a fence around the outdoor seating area that is 

adjacent to residentially zoned properties.  Fence shall comply with Section 

23-4 of the zoning code and the applicant shall obtain required building 

permits. 

Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20866
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f41115cf-b09b-4f97-bb37-aeccbf8176b3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20883
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8df233bf-cda8-49b2-9210-41db69ef79d2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20897
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7e0b8f42-1537-47ed-8d63-c7b3a4521922.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Michael Smith, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe 

Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Abstained: Alderperson Alex Schultz and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

Alderperson Prohaska moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Special Use Permit be approved as amended. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Michael Smith, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe 

Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Abstained: Alderperson Alex Schultz and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, Alderperson Prohaska seconded, to approve 

the balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

22-0304 Approve Parking restriction change on the 1300 block of W. Harris Street 

(west of Mason Street).  Follow-Up to Six-Month Trial Period

 

1300 block of W. Harris Street.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20854
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=90b4406b-7951-4c71-96d1-69cc4826b613.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0397 Request from Brett Pawloski, 818 W Marquette Street, to have his 

sidewalk snow removal assessment of $75 waived.

 

818 W Marquette St.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0398 Approve proposed change to Municipal Code 19-112, non-metered 

off-street parking.

 

Municipal Code 19-112.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0399 Approve change to intersection control at the Amelia Street/Wayne Street 

intersection.  Follow-up to SIxth-Month Trial Period.

 

Amelia St-Wayne St.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0400 Approve change to intersection control at the Bedford Lane/Chestnut 

Lane/Plank Road intersection.  Follow-up to Sixth-Month Trial Period.

 

Bedford La-Chestnut La-Plank Road.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0401 Approve change to intersection control at the Osprey Drive/Ridgehaven 

Lane intersection.  Follow-up to Sixth Month Trial Period.

 

Osprey Dr-Ridgehaven La.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0402 Approve installation of Yield signs on Zion Lane/Zion Court at Sequoia 

Drive.

 

Zion La-Zion Ct at Sequoia Dr.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20947
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e050ffd-3198-45e9-bed0-62c616cf1508.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20948
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=25ca3473-8de1-41ac-98a2-cf06ab150fb6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20949
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0022cb35-7a8c-4d17-82b6-5d4269e5780a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20950
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f42eda91-3e2c-4b5d-ba88-9ee62c9b7009.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20951
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e524aada-d31a-4bfe-be51-540068ce99a6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20952
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=64341266-d75a-46ba-a1ea-3d9b88591eea.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0404 Request from the Community Blood Center to waive the $9/day/parking 

meter fee for five (5) stalls on College Avenue on April 27th, August 31st, 

October 26th and December 28th.

 

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

22-0329 "Class A" Liquor License application for Badger Gas Inc, Kalwinder 

Kaur, Agent, located at 911 W College Ave, contingent upon approval 

from the Fire, Health and Inspections departments.  

Badger Gas Inc.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

22-0250 Request to approve Rezoning #2-22 for the subject parcel located at 217 

South Badger Avenue (Tax Id #31-3-0907-00), including to the centerline 

of the adjacent railroad line and the adjacent one-half (1/2) right-of-way of 

South Badger Avenue and West Eighth Street, as shown on the attached 

maps, from C-2 General Commercial District to C-1 Neighborhood 

Mixed Use District

StaffReport_217SBadgerAv_Rezoning_For03-09-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0343 Request to approve Special Use Permit #2-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 127 South Memorial Drive (Tax Id 

#31-3-0972-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan 

of operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached 

staff report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common 

Council required for approval)

StaffReport_127SMemorialDr_SUP_For3-23-22.pdf

EmailofSupportforSUP_GregDeCleene_3-22-22.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20954
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20879
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1100d489-9704-4272-b479-02a73fff17c1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20800
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b4260e9-2078-4db8-86a6-188f90b65b05.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20893
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2d0123ab-c160-4042-aff5-e25c37309537.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=80d458aa-cc0d-4619-b515-0d3d88e5f68a.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0345 Request to approve Special Use Permit #3-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 324 East College Avenue (Tax Id 

#31-2-0343-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan 

of operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached 

staff report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common 

Council required for approval)

StaffReport_324ECollegeAve_SUP_For03-23-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0351 Request to approve the Extraterritorial Final Plat for Auburn Estates 

located in the Town of Grand Chute as shown on the attached maps

StaffReport_AuburnEstates_FinalPlat_For03-23-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

22-0386 Request approval to deed City owned land on Gardenia Drive in the 

Village of Little Chute to the abutting property owners with no future 

special assessments for the future street connection

 

Gardenia Dr memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0393 Request to award the City of Appleton's 2022 AWWTP Hardscape 

Renovation project to Vinton Construction Co, Inc in the amount of 

$335,602 with a contingency of 12% for a project total not to exceed 

$375,875, along with the following 2022 budget amendment:

AWWTP Electrical Distribution Upgrades project - $ 67,821

AWWTP Hardscape Renovation project +$ 67,821

to transfer excess funds from the Electrical Distribution Upgrades project 

to the Hardscape Renovation project

 

2022 AWWTP Hardscapes Repairs with Budget transfer.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20895
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ab627000-c608-4991-8797-f118bfb437b2.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20901
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=56d178b6-6d93-45be-b0eb-b6c8b5e64803.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20936
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4dc42def-0691-4608-8d58-3304a3437c5e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20943
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=247b2a0a-4742-4af9-bf3a-d05a440dc54a.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

22-0394 Request to approve the following 2021 Budget amendments:

Community Development Block Grant Fund

Federal Grant     +$292,876

Grant Payments     +$292,876

to record additional federal funds received in the Community 

Development Block Grant program (2/3 vote of Council required)

Emergency Shelter Grant Fund

Federal Grant     +$546,081

Grant Payments     +$546,081

to record additional funds received for COVID-19 mitigation (2/3 vote of 

Council required)

Housing Rehabilitation Loan Fund

Federal Grant     +$107,332

Project Repayments      +$ 31,631

Grant Payments     +$138,963

to record additional funds received in the Housing Rehabilitation Loan 

program (2/3 vote of Council required)

City Center Capital Projects Fund

Fund Balance Applied       +$  4,158

Machinery & Equipment       +$  4,158

to record additional expense related to equipment (2/3 vote of Council 

required)

 

2021 Final Budget adjustments_.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

22-0403 Request to approve appropriate funding authority to pay Parks & 

Recreation Seasonal Employee incentives (also appears on the Human 

Resources agenda and the Parks & Recreation agenda as informational 

items)

 

2022 Seasonal Pay (Finance).pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 8City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20944
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=239cd28d-c572-4b03-ad5c-24b3e6abd270.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20953
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5e52b07f-813a-488c-a059-448e69bae7cb.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

22-0369 **CRITICAL TIMING** Request to approve the Offer to Purchase from 

Romenesko Developments, Inc. to purchase Lot 14 of Southpoint 

Commerce Park Plat No. 2, consisting of approximately 2.16 acres, at a 

purchase price of $86,400 ($40,000 per acre), which includes a 

commission of 8% payable to Romenesko Developments, Inc.

Romenesko Offer to Purchase Memo to CEDC 3-23-22.pdf

Romenesko Offer to Purchase Lot 14 Southpoint 3-15-22.pdf

SPCP Deed Restrictions.pdf

Southpoint Commerce Park Map_Subject Parcel.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

22-0373 Award Unit F-22, Sanitary and Storm Sewer Cleaning and Televising, to 

Green Bay Pipe & TV, LLC in an amount not to exceed $244,500.

 

Unit F-22.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

22-0383 Request to approve DPW to modify 1.5 FTE Purchasing Clerk to 2.0 

FTE Purchasing Clerk. 

 

MSB memo TO change for Purchasing.pdf

MSB TO draft 3-1-22.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

22-0356 Approve Award Recommendation for a Valley Transit Support Vehicle

Support Vehicle recommendation.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

Page 9City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20919
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=acac1ef8-a20d-4feb-b24c-d25599ec753f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4c484905-2124-4a82-a076-f5ab7e6d24e8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=18026a13-da27-477c-84dd-d58e8f35e031.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8d3bc882-a5ed-4009-89e7-b035b01bfb9f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20923
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=64aeb1bf-b70e-436d-983d-780ac8d95c57.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20933
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1838253b-1e54-48d2-9718-2347b6f600e4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f04ee26b-81e1-42a3-9f55-4cb9df4f52cc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20906
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fd34cd24-0003-4e56-ba39-c4378c2d8d92.pdf


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

22-0412 Ordinances #22-22 to #25-22, and Ordinance #26-22 (Growth of Weeds 

& Grass)

Ordinances to Council 4-6-22.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the 

Ordinances be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

22-0420 Alderperson Send-off

 

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Reed moved, seconded by Alderperson Smith, that the meeting 

be adjourned at 7:37 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, 

Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson Joe 

Prohaska and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Nay: Alderperson Michael Smith1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 10City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20962
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=923510ae-26bf-42ca-b6cd-1f29007e24aa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20970


April 6, 2022Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 11City of Appleton





NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
 

OF THE 
 

APPLETON COMMON COUNCIL 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of an Public Hearing to be held before the Common Council in Common 
Council Chambers, 6th Floor, City Hall, 100 North Appleton Street, on Wednesday, April 20, 2022, at 
7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, for the purpose of amending Article X of Chapter 23 of 
the Municipal Code relating to Floodplain Zoning that is required by state and federal law.   
 

The City of Appleton is considering amending Article X. Floodplain Zoning 
Division 1. Statutory Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, Title 
and General Provisions. Sec. 23-205 (b) (2) Official maps based on other studies 
related to CLOMR – Case #21-05-3029R.    

 
This notification invites you to express your views or concerns regarding the above-described request.  All 
persons interested are invited to attend this meeting and will be given an opportunity to be heard.  
Feedback can also be shared with Common Council members via written letter, email, or phone call. 
Alternatively, you can also contact the Mayor’s Office at mayor@appleton.org and your comments will be 
forwarded to the Council. 
 
A copy of the proposed Floodplain Zoning Ordinance amendment materials are available by contacting 
Pete Neuberger, P.E., Project Engineer in the Department of Public Works at 920-832-6474 or by email at 
peter.neuberger@appleton.org or by contacting Don Harp, Principal Planner in the Community and 
Economic Development Department at 920-832-6466 or by email at don.harp@appleton.org. 
 
 
March 24, 2022 
 KAMI LYNCH 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and if feasible. 
 

mailto:mayor@appleton.org
mailto:mayor@appleton.org
mailto:peter.neuberger@appleton.org
mailto:peter.neuberger@appleton.org
mailto:don.harp@appleton.org


































































































 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

April 06, 2022 

To: Katie Van Zeeland, Chair – Safety & Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Fire Chief 

Re: Request to Purchase Fire Truck via Sole Source 

 

 
The Appleton Fire Department (AFD) is requesting to purchase a PUC Engine prior to May 1, 2022 to avoid a 7% price 
increase and any subsequent inflationary price increases that may occur later this year. Lead time for receiving a fire 
truck after it is ordered has increased from 17 to about 23 months.  Here is a quick cost breakdown: 
 

Purchase Date Price Savings before May 1st 

Prior to May 1, 2022 $790,800 $55,200 

After May 1, 2022 $846,000  

 
Under this scenario, no payment would be required until delivery. However, prepayment discounts are available based 
on interest rates. The estimated prepayment saving is: 
 

Purchase Date Price Savings before May 1st Prepayment Savings Total Savings 

Prior to May 1, 2022 $790,800 $55,200 $35,000 $90,200 

After May 1, 2022 $846,000  $38,000 $38,000 

 
Historically, the city has exercised the prepayment option.  I have no doubt this option will exists in the future.  Which 
brings the known savings to $ 55,200 if we purchase the vehicle prior to May 1, 2022. What we don’t know is if there will 
be additional price increases between May 1st and the end of the year. 
 
The AFD has purchased identical PUC Engine in 2017 and 2019. This would be the third nearly identical vehicle 
purchased. The department has identified that standardizing our fleet will improve efficiencies and safety by providing 
consistency from one truck to the next for personnel moving from one station to another. Efficiencies will also be gained 
relating to maintenance of the vehicles. By ordering the same PUC Engine, the department will save significant staff time 
by eliminating the need to develop specifications for each truck. The department will also save significant staff time 
training on the new truck prior to putting it in service. 
 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

The AFD has a long-standing relationship with Pierce Manufacturing and has seen the innovation, cooperation, improved 
pricing, as well as their commitment and direct involvement in the growth of our city. When the department has 
encountered issues with our vehicles, Pierce Manufacturing has been extremely responsive to our needs. 
 
Plans are currently underway to proceed with the order prior to May 1, 2022 to avoid the 7% price increase. Therefore, 
the AFD requests the approval to order and prepay the PUC Engine via sole source with Fire Apparatus & Equipment, 
Pierce Manufacturing. 

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 



















2-22-2022









10,







































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  Doctors Properties, LLC c/o Henry Chou 

 

Subject Site:  Apple Fields plat 

 

Project:  Installation of a culvert and fill placement within the Apple Fields plat 

 

Staff Contact/Initiated By:  Peter Neuberger, P.E., Department of Public Works, Engineering Division 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  Floodplain Zoning Amendment - Article X. Floodplain Zoning Division 1. Statutory 

Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, Title and General Provisions. Sec. 23-205 (b) (2) 

Official maps based on other studies related to CLOMR – Case #21-05-3029R.    
 

BACKGROUND/ANALYSIS____________________________________________________  _ 

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requires local units of government to adopt the 

national floodplain map so any changes to the national floodplain maps, such as this change in base flood 

elevation (the elevation of surface water resulting from a flood that has a 1% chance of equaling or 

exceeding that level in any given year), must be approved as a text/map amendment.   

The City has received comments and preliminary approval of a Conditional Letter of Map Revision 

(CLOMR) from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for installation of a culvert and fill 

placement within the Apple Fields plat. (See attached CLOMR Case #21-05-3029R)  

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Informal Public Hearing Date:  March 23, 2022 

 

Common Council Public Hearing Date:  April 20, 2022 

 

Item:  Floodplain Zoning Amendment - Article X. Floodplain Zoning 

Division 1. Statutory Authorization, Finding of Fact, Statement of Purpose, 

Title and General Provisions. Sec. 23-205 (b) (2) Official maps based on 

other studies related to CLOMR – Case #21-05-3029R.    
 

Staff Contact:  Peter Neuberger, P.E., Department of Public Works, 

Engineering Division 

 

Prepared by:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



 

Floodplain Zoning Amendment Chapter 23 Zoning Ordinance  

March 23, 2022 

Page 2 

 

The Apple Fields plat is located in an area upstream of the limits of the current floodplain mapping, and the 

proposed changes are required to meet the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the Federal 

Emergency Management (FEMA) requirements for the proposed project.  Changes to the floodplain are 

occurring on the subject property and on adjacent property upstream. Where floodplain elevations increase 

on neighboring property as a result of the project, the developer has obtained floodplain easements on the 

affected property. 

Following the issuance of the CLOMR, the property owner installs the culvert and fill on the property. 

Upon completion of the project, the data required on pages 5 and 6 of the CLOMR are submitted to FEMA 

in order to have an official Letter of Map Amendment or Revision (LOMA/LOMR) issued which officially 

adjusts the FEMA Floodplain and Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).   

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the March 1, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:_______________________________________________________________ 

Pending public comments, staff recommends the proposed amendments to Article X Floodplain Zoning of 

Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code, Section 23-205 (b) (2) Official maps based on other studies, as attached, 

BE APPROVED.   

 



1 | P a g e  

 

PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

 

The text recommended to be added is underlined. 

 
Sec. 23-205. General provisions. 

 

 (a) Areas to be regulated. This ordinance regulates all areas that would be covered by the regional flood or base 

flood as shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) or other maps approved by DNR.  Base flood elevations are 

derived from the flood profiles in the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) and are shown as AE, A1-30, and AH Zones on the 

FIRM.  Other regulatory zones are displayed as A and AO zones.  Regional Flood Elevations (RFE) may be derived 

from other studies.  If more than one map or revision is referenced, the most restrictive information shall apply.   

 

 (b) Official maps and revisions. The boundaries of all floodplain districts are designated as A, AE, AH, AO or 

A1-30 on the maps based on the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) listed below.  Any change to the base flood elevations 

(BFE) or any changes to the boundaries of the floodplain or floodway in the FIS or on the Flood Insurance Rate Map 

(FIRM) must be reviewed and approved by the DNR and FEMA through the Letter of Map Change process (see 

Division 8 Amendments) before it is effective.  No changes to RFE's on non-FEMA maps shall be effective until 

approved by the DNR.  These maps and revisions are on file in the office of the Department of Public Works, City of 

Appleton.  If more than one map or revision is referenced, the most restrictive information shall apply.   

 

   (1) Official maps based on the FIS: 

 

   a. Calumet County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), panel numbers 55015C0007E, 55015C0026E 

and 55015C0027E dated February 4, 2009; with corresponding profiles that are based on the 

Calumet County Flood Insurance Study (FIS), dated February 2009, volume number 

55015CV000A. 

 

   b. Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel numbers 55087C0304E, and 

55087C0308E dated January 20, 2016; with corresponding profiles that are based on the Flood 

Insurance Study (FIS) dated January 20, 2016, volume number 55087CV000B. 

 

   c. Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel numbers 55087C0309D, 

55087C0314D, 55087C0316D, 55087C0317D, 55087C0318D, 55087C0319D, 55087C0330, 

55087C0338D, 55087C0427D, 55087C0431D and 55087C451D dated July 22, 2010; with 

corresponding profiles that are based on the Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) dated 

July 22, 2010 volume number 55087CV000A. 

 

   d. Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel numbers 55087C0328D, 

55087C0329D, 55087C0336D, 55087C0337D dated July 22, 2010 and revised August 23, 2013 

with corresponding profiles that are based on the Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) 

dated July 22, 2010 volume number 55087CV000A, all revised and annotated pursuant to FEMA 

Letter of Map Revision Determination Document Case No: 12-05-6032P, Issue Date April 10, 2013, 

Effective Date August 23, 2013. 

 

    Approved by:  The DNR and FEMA 

 

  (2) Official maps based on other studies.  Any maps referenced in this section must be approved by the 

DNR and be more restrictive than those based on the FIS at the site of the proposed development. 

 

   a. LOMR – Case #11-05-7670P, Floodway and Floodplain revisions between Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) Cross Section AW to BA, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panels 

55087C0318D and 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 2010. This reflects changes on the Fox River from 

just downstream of the Private Middle Dam to approximately 250 feet upstream of the Appleton 

Upper Dam. 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

   b. LOMR – Case #13-05-7920P, Floodplain revisions between Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Cross 

Section AN to AM, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate panels 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 

2010. This reflects changes along the south side of the Fox River from the College Avenue Bridge 

to approximately 850 feet downstream. 

 

   c. LOMR – Case #17-05-1963P. Floodplain revisions on Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) AAL Tributary Cross Section C, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel 

55087C0336D, effective September 29, 2017. This reflects changes along the AAL Tributary from 

just downstream of Lightning Drive to approximately 200 feet upstream of East Glenhurst Lane. 

 

   d. LOMR – Case #17-05-3854P. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) Fox River Cross Section AS through AW, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 

(FIRM) panel 55087C0319D, effective February 16, 2018. This reflects changes along the Fox 

River from just upstream of railroad to just downstream of South Oneida Street. 

 

   e. LOMR – Case #20-05-2300P. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) Apple Creek North Cross Section H through J, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 

(FIRM) panel 55087C0328D, effective July 22, 2010. This reflects changes along Apple Creek 

North from approximately 1,440 feet downstream of Harrier Lance to approximately 160 feet 

downstream of Ballard Road. 

 

   f. CLOMR – Case #21-05-3029R. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie County Flood Insurance Study 

(FIS) AAL Tributary from just upstream of East Glenhurst Lane to approximately 500 feet upstream 

of Everbreeze Circle, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel 55087C0336D, 

effective November 1, 2021. 

 

  f. g. Kensington Pond Dam Failure analysis approved by the Department of Natural Resources on 

January 7, 2008, including: 

 

    1. Map dated July 2007 and titled “Figure 2, City of Appleton, Kensington Pond Dam Break 

Analysis, Hydraulic Shadow” (Hydraulic Shadow boundary from Cross Section 0.001 to 4.84). 

 

    2. Floodway data table dated 8/28/2007 and titled “Table F-10, Maximum Water Surface 

Elevations, Kensington Pond Dam Break Analysis, City of Appleton”. 

 

    3. Flood profiles dated 7/10/2007 and titled “Figure 3, Maximum Water Surface Profiles” 

(Hydraulic Shadow profile from Garners Creek Sta 0 to Sta 25000). Revisions made as a result 

of DNR review and received from Pete Neuberger via email 2/23/2021. 

 

   g. h. Outagamie County Flood Storage District Map Panel 1 of 2 approved by Wisconsin Department 

of Natural Resources and dated January 20, 2016. Prepared by DNR, approved by DNR. 

 
 

 



CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

Dear Mayor Woodford:

Washington, D.C. 20472 

November 1, 2021 

Federal Emergency Management Agency

IN REPLY REFER TO:
Case No.:   21-05-3029R 
Community Name: City of Appleton, WI 
Community No.:  555542 

We are providing our comments with the enclosed Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) on a proposed 
project within your community that if constructed as proposed could revise the effective Flood Insurance Study 
report and Flood Insurance Rate Map for your community. 

Ms. Paula Vandehey 
Director of Public Works 
City of Appleton 

Mr. Brian Cunningham, CFM 
State NFIP Coordinator 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 

Mr. John R. Davel, P.E. 
President  
Davel Engineering & Environmental, Inc. 

If you have any questions regarding the floodplain management regulations for your community, the National Flood 
Insurance Program (NFIP) in general, or technical questions regarding this CLOMR, please contact the Director, 
Mitigation Division of the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Regional Office in Chicago, Illinois at 
(312) 408-5500, or the FEMA Mapping and Insurance eXchange (FMIX) toll free at 1-877-336-2627 (1-877-FEMA
MAP).  Additional information about the NFIP is available on our website at https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance.

Conditional Letter of Map Revision Comment Document 

cc: 

Sincerely, 

List of Enclosures: 

Patrick �Rick� F. Sacbibit, P.E., Branch Chief 
Engineering Services Branch 
Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration 

The Honorable Jake Woodford 
Mayor, City of Appleton 
City Hall 
100 N. Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911 



 Issue Date: November 1, 2021  Case No.:  21-05-3029R CLOMR-APP

NO.:  55087C0336D

No BFEs BFEs Yes None

 Page 1 of 5

Proposed Project Location of Proposed Project

Fill Placement

New Culvert

Yes

Yes

* BFEs - Base (1-percent-annual-chance) Flood Elevations

COMMENT

This document provides the Federal Emergency Management Agency�s (FEMA�s) comment regarding a request for a CLOMR for the project described above.  This 
document is not a final determination; it only provides our comment on the proposed project in relation to the flood hazard information shown on the effective National 
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) map.  We reviewed the submitted data and the data used to prepare the effective flood hazard information for your community and 
determined that the proposed project meets the minimum floodplain management criteria of the NFIP.  Your community is responsible for approving all floodplain 
development and for ensuring that all permits required by Federal or State/Commonwealth law have been received.  State/Commonwealth, county, and community 
officials, based on their knowledge of local conditions and in the interest of safety, may set higher standards for construction in the Special Flood Hazard Area 
(SFHA), the area subject to inundation by the base flood).  If the State/Commonwealth, county, or community has adopted more restrictive or comprehensive 
floodplain management criteria, these criteria take precedence over the minimum NFIP criteria.

21-05-3029R

FLOODING SOURCE AND REACH DESCRIPTION

PROPOSED PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Flooding Source

Effective Flooding Increases

AAL Tributary - from just upstream of East Glenhurst Lane to approximately 500 feet upstream of East Everbreeze Circle

Decreases

AAL Tributary Just upstream and downstream of East Everbreeze Circle, as well as 180 
feet and 265 feet upstream of  East Glenhurst Lane

220 feet upstream of  East Glenhurst Lane

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS TO FLOOD HAZARD DATA

Flooding Source

AAL Tributary

None

BFEsBFEs*

Yes

Zone AE

Zone AE

Yes

TYPE:  FIRM* * FIRM - Flood Insurance Rate MapDATE: July 22, 2010

IDENTIFIER Apple Fields
APPROXIMATE LATITUDE & LONGITUDE: 44.309, -88.370
SOURCE:  USGS QUADRANGLE     DATUM:  NAVD 88

AFFECTED MAP PANELS

 COMMUNITY NO.:  555542

1D HYDRAULIC ANALYSIS
FLOODWAY
UPDATED TOPOGRAPHIC DATA

City of Appleton
Outagamie County

Wisconsin

Proposed Flooding

Washington, D.C. 20472

Federal Emergency Management Agency

CULVERT
FILL

CONDITIONAL LETTER OF MAP REVISION

COMMUNITY

COMMENT DOCUMENT

COMMUNITY INFORMATION PROPOSED PROJECT DESCRIPTION BASIS OF CONDITIONAL REQUEST

HYDROLOGIC ANALYSIS

Patrick �Rick� F. Sacbibit, P.E., Branch Chief
Engineering Services Branch
Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration

Yes

Yes None

Zone AE

Zone A

This comment is based on the flood data presently available.  If you have any questions about this document, please contact the FEMA Mapping and Insurance eXchange 
(FMIX) toll free at 1-877-336-2627 (1-877-FEMA MAP) or by letter addressed to the LOMC Clearinghouse, 3601 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 500, Alexandria, VA 22304-6426.  
Additional Information about the NFIP is available on the FEMA website at https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance.

FloodwayNo Floodway



CLOMR-APP

BFE Change (feet)

Increases due to the proposed project that exceed those permitted under Paragraphs (c)(10) or (d)(3) of Section 60.3 of the NFIP regulations must adhere 
to Section 65.12 of the NFIP regulations.  With this request, your community has complied with all requirements of Paragraph 65.12(a) of the NFIP 
regulations.  Compliance with Paragraph 65.12(b) also is necessary before FEMA can issue a Letter of Map Revision when a community proposes to 
permit encroachments into the effective regulatory floodway that will cause BFE increases in excess of those permitted under Paragraph 60.3(d)(3).  

NFIP regulations Subparagraph 60.3(b)(7) requires communities to ensure that the flood-carrying capacity within the altered or relocated portion of any 
watercourse is maintained.  This provision is incorporated into your community�s existing floodplain management ordinances; therefore, responsibility for 
maintenance of the altered or relocated watercourse, including any related appurtenances such as bridges, culverts, and other drainage structures, rests 
with your community.  We may request that your community submit a description and schedule of maintenance activities necessary to ensure this 
requirement.

To determine the changes in flood hazards that will be caused by the proposed project, we compared the hydraulic modeling reflecting the proposed 
project (referred to as the proposed conditions model) to the hydraulic modeling used to prepare the Flood Insurance Study (FIS) (referred to as the 
effective model).  If the effective model does not provide enough detail to evaluate the effects of the proposed project, an existing conditions model must 
be developed to provide this detail.  This existing conditions model is then compared to the effective model and the proposed conditions model to 
differentiate the increases or decreases in flood hazards caused by more detailed modeling from the increases or decreases in flood hazards that will be 
caused by the proposed project.

The table below shows the changes in the BFEs:

 Page 2 of 5  Issue Date: November 1, 2021  Case No.:  21-05-3029R

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Washington, D.C. 20472

CONDITIONAL LETTER OF MAP REVISION
COMMENT DOCUMENT (CONTINUED)

0.00

0.03

 Location of maximum change

N/A

Approximately 150 feet upstream of East Glenhurst Lane

Approximately 250  feet upstream of East Everbreeze Circle

N/A

Approximately 150 feet upstream of East Glenhurst Lane

0.00

0.02

0.82

0.11

Approximately 300  feet upstream of East Glenhurst Lane

COMMUNITY INFORMATION

Patrick �Rick� F. Sacbibit, P.E., Branch Chief
Engineering Services Branch
Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration 21-05-3029R

BFE Comparison Table

Existing vs. 
Effective

Proposed vs. 
Existing

Maximum increase

Maximum decrease

Proposed vs. 
Effective

This comment is based on the flood data presently available.  If you have any questions about this document, please contact the FEMA Mapping and Insurance eXchange 
(FMIX) toll free at 1-877-336-2627 (1-877-FEMA MAP) or by letter addressed to the LOMC Clearinghouse, 3601 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 500, Alexandria, VA 22304-6426.  
Additional Information about the NFIP is available on the FEMA website at https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance.

Maximum increase

Maximum decrease

Maximum increase

Maximum decrease

Flooding Source: AAL Tributary



CLOMR-APP

Washington, D.C. 20472

CONDITIONAL LETTER OF MAP REVISION
COMMENT DOCUMENT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

DATA REQUIRED FOR FOLLOW-UP LOMR

Upon completion of the project, your community must submit the data listed below and request that we make a final determination on 
revising the effective FIRM, and FIS report.  If the project is built as proposed and the data below are received, a revision to the FIRM and 
FIS report would be warranted.

� Form 1, entitled �Overview & Concurrence Form�. Detailed application and certification forms must be used for requesting final
revisions to the maps.  Therefore, when the map revision request for the area covered by this letter is submitted, Form 1 must be included.
If as-built conditions differ from the proposed plans, please submit new forms, which may be accessed at https://www.fema.gov/flood-
maps/change-your-flood-zone/paper-application-forms/mt-2, or annotated copies of the previously submitted forms showing the revised
information.

� Form 2, entitled "Riverine Hydrology & Hydraulics Form."

� Form 3, entitled "Riverine Structures Form."

� Hydraulic analyses, for as-built conditions, of the base flood; the 10-percent, 2-percent, and 0.2 percent annual chance floods; and the
regulatory floodway, together with a topographic work map showing the revised floodplain and floodway boundaries. Please ensure that the
revised information ties in with the current effective information at the downstream and upstream ends of the revised reach.

� An annotated copy of the FIRM, at the scale of the effective FIRM, that shows the revised floodplain and floodway boundary delineations
shown on the submitted work map and how they tie into the floodplain and floodway boundary delineations shown on the current effective
FIRM at the downstream and upstream ends of the revised reach.

� As-built plans, certified by a registered professional engineer, of all proposed project elements.

� A copy of the public notice distributed by your community, stating its intent to revise the regulatory floodway, or a signed statement by
your community that it has notified all affected property owners and affected adjacent jurisdictions.

� Documentation of the individual legal notices sent to property owners who will be affected by any widening/shifting of the base
floodplain and/or any BFE increases along AAL Tributary.

� Evidence that your community has, prior to approval of the proposed encroachment, adopted floodplain management ordinances that
incorporate the increased BFEs and revised floodway boundary delineations to reflect the post-project conditions, as stated in Paragraph
65.12(b).

This comment is based on the flood data presently available.  If you have any questions about this document, please contact the FEMA Mapping and Insurance eXchange 
(FMIX) toll free at 1-877-336-2627 (1-877-FEMA MAP) or by letter addressed to the LOMC Clearinghouse, 3601 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 500, Alexandria, VA 22304-6426.  
Additional Information about the NFIP is available on the FEMA website at https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance.

Patrick �Rick� F. Sacbibit, P.E., Branch Chief
Engineering Services Branch
Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration 21-05-3029R

 Page 3 of 5  Issue Date: November 1, 2021  Case No.:  21-05-3029R

Federal Emergency Management Agency



CLOMR-APP

Washington, D.C. 20472

CONDITIONAL LETTER OF MAP REVISION
COMMENT DOCUMENT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

This comment is based on the flood data presently available.  If you have any questions about this document, please contact the FEMA Mapping and Insurance eXchange 
(FMIX) toll free at 1-877-336-2627 (1-877-FEMA MAP) or by letter addressed to the LOMC Clearinghouse, 3601 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 500, Alexandria, VA 22304-6426.  
Additional Information about the NFIP is available on the FEMA website at https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance.

Patrick �Rick� F. Sacbibit, P.E., Branch Chief
Engineering Services Branch
Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration 21-05-3029R

� A letter stating that your community will adopt and enforce the modified regulatory floodway, OR, if the State/Commonwealth has
jurisdiction over either the regulatory floodway or its adoption by your community, a copy of your community�s letter to the appropriate
State/Commonwealth agency notifying it of the modification to the regulatory floodway and a copy of the letter from that agency stating its
approval of the modification.

� FEMA�s fee schedule for reviewing and processing requests for conditional and final modifications to published flood information and
maps may be accessed at https://www.fema.gov/flood-maps/change-your-flood-zone/status/flood-map-related-fees.  The fee at the time of
the map revision submittal must be received before we can begin processing the request.  Payment of this fee can be made through a check
or money order, made payable in U.S. funds to the National Flood Insurance Program, or by credit card (Visa or MasterCard only).  Please
forward the payment, along with the revision application, to the following address:

LOMC Clearinghouse
3601 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 500

Alexandria,VA 22304-6426

After receiving appropriate documentation to show that the project has been completed, FEMA will initiate a revision to the FIRM and FIS 
report. Because the flood hazard information (i.e., base flood elevations, base flood depths, SFHAs, zone designations, and/or regulatory 
floodways) will change as a result of the project, a 90-day appeal period will be initiated for the revision, during which community officials 
and interested persons may appeal the revised flood hazard information based on scientific or technical data.

 Page 4 of 5  Issue Date: November 1, 2021  Case No.:  21-05-3029R

Federal Emergency Management Agency



CLOMR-APP

Washington, D.C. 20472

CONDITIONAL LETTER OF MAP REVISION
COMMENT DOCUMENT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

This comment is based on the flood data presently available.  If you have any questions about this document, please contact the FEMA Mapping and Insurance eXchange 
(FMIX) toll free at 1-877-336-2627 (1-877-FEMA MAP) or by letter addressed to the LOMC Clearinghouse, 3601 Eisenhower Avenue, Suite 500, Alexandria, VA 22304-6426.  
Additional Information about the NFIP is available on the FEMA website at https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance.

Patrick �Rick� F. Sacbibit, P.E., Branch Chief
Engineering Services Branch
Federal Insurance and Mitigation Administration 21-05-3029R

COMMUNITY REMINDERS

We have designated a Consultation Coordination Officer (CCO) to assist your community.  The CCO will be the primary liaison between 
your community and FEMA.  For information regarding your CCO, please contact:

Ms. Mary Beth Caruso
Director, Mitigation Division

Federal Emergency Management Agency, Region V
536 South Clark Street, Sixth Floor

Chicago, IL 60605
(312) 408-5500

 Page 5 of 5  Issue Date: November 1, 2021  Case No.:  21-05-3029R

Federal Emergency Management Agency













 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  Jordan Banda – 1800 West Rogers Avenue 

 

Applicant:  Russell Leary – 1800 West Rogers Avenue 

 

Address/Parcel #:  1103 West College Avenue (Tax Id #31-3-1064-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for a restaurant with alcohol sales 

and service.  

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

On December 2, 2021, the Inspections Division issued Building Permit #B21-1145 for remodeling the 

subject site into a restaurant with a bar area.  

 

The Appleton Elks Lodge #337 sold the subject site to Jordan Banda (owner) pursuant to Warranty Deed 

Document #2230993, executed on April 16, 2021. 

On May 19, 1998, Certificate of Occupancy and Compliance #98-41 was issued by the Inspections 

Division to allow the Appleton Elks Club to occupy the subject site for a place of entertainment.  

 

On August 2, 1995, the Common Council approved Special Use Permit (SUP) #8-95 to permanently run 

with the Appleton Elks Lodge #337 for a “private club with a bar” located at 1103 West College Avenue.  

Note: SUP 8-95 cannot be transferred to another person/entity.  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  Mill City Public House is restaurant with alcohol sales serving lunch and dinner 

meals, including a bar area.  In addition, take-out food orders will be offered. The business operations 

(dining, bar, kitchen/cooler/freezer, restroom and office areas) will utilize the ground floor of the 4,120 

square foot building.   The basement area is not included in this review.  

 

Operational Information:  The plan of operation is attached to the staff report. 

 

Outdoor Seating Area:  No outdoor alcohol sales and service is requested with this application. 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  April 13, 2022 

Common Council Meeting Date:  April 20, 2022 

Item:  Special Use Permit #5-22 for restaurant with alcohol sales and 

service located at 1103 West College Avenue 

 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #5-22 

April 13, 2022 

Page 2 

 

Zoning Development Standards (Restaurant):  The review of the zoning development/off-street 

parking standards of the C-2 General Commercial District for the restaurant use is under the purview of 

the Inspections Division pursuant to Building Permit #B21-1145.  Prior to the Certificate of Occupancy 

and Compliance being issued, the Inspections Division will ensure the remodeling project for the 

restaurant use complies with the Zoning Ordinance regulations.  

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements (Alcohol Sales):  The subject property has a zoning designation of C-

2 General Commercial District.  Per Section 23-113(e) of the Municipal Code, a restaurant with alcohol 

sales requires a Special Use Permit in the C-2 District.  In order to permit alcohol sales and service in 

conjunction with the proposed restaurant, the Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common 

Council who will make the final decision on the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the 

Common Council is required for approval. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally commercial and residential in nature. 

 

North:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently a mix of uses, 

including personal storage, retail and personal/professional services.  

 

South:  R-1B Single-family and R-2 Two-family district. The adjacent land uses to the south are currently 

one/two family residential. 

 

East:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the east is professional office building.  

 

West:  C-2 General Commercial District.  The adjacent land use to the west is an unoccupied commercial 

building.  

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the commercial designation shown on the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.5 Economic Development: 

Encourage new development and redevelopment activities that create vital and attractive neighborhoods 

and business districts. 



Special Use Permit #5-22 

April 13, 2022 

Page 3 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.2 Land Use: 

Encourage redevelopment to meet the demand for a significant share of future growth, and to enhance the 

quality of existing neighborhoods. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.5 Land Use: 

Support the continued redevelopment and revitalization of land uses adjacent to Appleton’s key 

transportation corridors and downtown. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan 

Commission and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and 

information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements  

and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would 

accept in support of a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be 

reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards for granting a Special Use 

Permit under Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code:  (1. proper zoning district: C-2 zoning allows 

restaurants with alcohol as a special use permit; 2. zoning district regulations: prior to the Certificate of 

Occupancy and Compliance being issued, the Inspections Division will ensure the remodeling project for 

the restaurant use complies with the Zoning Ordinance regulations pursuant to Building Permit #B21-

1145; 3. special regulations: stipulations 1, 2, 3 and 4 (below) address the special regulations for 

restaurants with alcohol sales; 4. consistent with comprehensive plan and other plans: yes, see above 

analysis; 5. Traffic ingress/egress: the proposed use is not expected to create undue traffic congestion in 

the public streets, it is anticipated customers will utilize the existing driveway located on the alley to enter 

and exit the parking lot; 6. landscaping and screening: not applicable to this use. 7. neighborhood 

compatibility with predominant land uses in this area: the proposed use is located near other commercial 

uses in this area of City; 8. impact on services: the City has existing utilities, services and equipment in 

place to serve this proposed use).  These standards were found in the affirmative, as long as all 

stipulations are satisfied.  

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the March 22, 2022 TRG agenda.  No 

negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above, that Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant with alcohol sales 

and service located at 1103 West College Avenue (Tax Id #31-3-1064-00), as shown on the attached maps 

and per attached plan of operation, along with the attached resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the 

land, subject to the following conditions: 

 



Special Use Permit #5-22 

April 13, 2022 

Page 4 

 

1. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License from the City Clerk prior to serving 

alcohol on the premises. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that a Liquor License is 

also needed prior to serving alcohol. 

 

2. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic Beverages, 

of the Appleton Municipal Code. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 

3. The site shall be kept free of litter and debris. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 

4. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable 

State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 

5. Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development plan(s), plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use 

Permit pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and 

Economic Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #5-22  

RESTAURANT WITH ALCOHOL 

1103 WEST COLLEGE AVENUE  

 

 

WHEREAS, Russell Leary, Mill City Public House, has applied for a Special Use Permit for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 1103 West College Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-3-1064-00; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the location for the proposed restaurant with alcohol sales and service is located in the C-2 

General Commercial District, and the proposed use may be permitted by Special Use Permit within this zoning 

district pursuant to Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on April 13, 2022 on Special Use 

Permit #5-22, at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or present written comments and 

other materials at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the Community and 

Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written 

evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a Special Use Permit 

under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing conditions on the 

Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and forwarded Special Use Permit #5-22 

to the City of Appleton Common Council with a   favorable conditional      or       not favorable      (CIRCLE 

ONE) recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and recommendation of the City 

of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on April 20, 2022. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Common Council, 

based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing and Common Council meeting, 

and having considered the recommendation of the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 

 

1. Determines all standards listed under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code are found in the 

affirmative     YES     or     NO      (CIRCLE ONE) 

 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant with 

alcohol sales and service located at 1103 West College Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-3-

1064-00, based upon the following standards and determinations:  (List reason(s) why the Special Use 

Permit was denied) 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #5-22 for a restaurant 

with alcohol sales and service at 1103 West College Avenue, also identified as Parcel Number 31-3-1064-

00, subject to the following conditions as they are related to the purpose of the City of Appleton Municipal 

Code and based on substantial evidence: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #5-22: 

 

A. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License from the City Clerk prior to serving alcohol on 

the premises. 

 

B. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic Beverages, of the 

Appleton Municipal Code. 

 

C. The site shall be kept free of litter and debris. 

 

D. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable State and 

Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

E. Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development plan(s), plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the owner/applicant, 

Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, and any other interested party. 

 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2022. 

 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 











3-1121-1

3-1128-1

5-1670

3-1
10

6
3-1

11
4

3-1
07

9

3-1
08

0

5-1728
3-1

10
9

3-1
10

8

3-1
11

0

3-1
11

5

3-1
11

6

3-1
11

7

3-1
11

8

3-1
11

9

3-1
06

4
3-1

07
2

3-1
07

1

3-1
11

2

3-1
11

1

3-1
07

0

3-1
06

9

3-1
06

8

3-1
06

7

3-1
06

6
3-1

05
9

3-1
06

0

3-1
06

1

3-1
06

2

3-1
06

3

3-1
09

4

3-1
09

3
3-1

10
2

3-1
08

7

3-1
08

6

5-1729-1
5-1669

5-1677

5-1674

5-1673

5-1
683

5-1
675

5-1676

3-1137

3-1056

3-10573-1050

3-1
12

3

3-1
12

2

3-1
12

1
3-1

13
0

3-1
13

1

3-1
13

2

3-1
12

7
3-1

12
6

3-1
12

5
3-1

12
4

3-1
12

8

3-1
13

3 3-1
13

4

3-1
13

5

3-1
13

6

3-1
05

4

3-1
05

3

3-1
05

2

3-1
04

3

3-1
04

4

3-1
04

5

3-1
04

6-1

3-1
04

7
3-1

04
8

3-1
04

9

3-1
05

5
3-1

04
6

3-1121-2

3-1
081

3-1
058

3-1
065

3-1103

3-1104 3-1129

3-1
05

1

3-1
12

0

3-1105
3-1113

3-1
10

7
5-1671-1

3-1
12

0-1

1007.51121.5

140.5

1023 1017 1011

1117

1013 1007 1003

1000

1010

1033

12
7

12
012
0

11
2

21
0

21
8

21
2

22
0

1112.5 1102.5

21
9

1207-09 1203 1135 1127 1121 1115 1109 1103
1135.5

110211081114112411281134 1118
1128.5 1118.5 1032.5 1026.5

1032

1003.5

12
7.5

10031007101310171023

136.5136
130

140

200

13
9

13
5

20
1

21
7

21
3

1129.5 1125.5

1008

11
9

1012101810221026

1023.5
1027-291031

1035.5
1035

12021208

12031209 1119112511291135 110311091115

21
9

20
9

ALLEY

W COLLEGE AV

W LAWRENCE ST

S S
UM

MI
T S

T

S S
PR

UC
E S

T

N BADGER AV

W WASHINGTON ST

MARSTON ALLEY

C-2

P-I

R-2

R-2

R-1B

R-2

R-1C

R-2

R-2

R-1B

R-1C

R-1C

R-1B

R-1C

R-1B

R-1B
R-1C

R-2

R-1B

R-2

R-2

R-1B
R-2

R-1B

R-1B
R-1B

R-1B

R-2

R-1C

W COLLEGE AV

W PACKARD ST

W LAWRENCE ST

W SPENCER ST

W EIGHTH ST

N BADGER AV

W LORAIN ST

S S
TA

TE
 S

T

S S
TO

RY
 ST

S M
AS

ON
 ST

N 
ST

AT
E S

T

N 
ST

OR
Y S

T

N 
MA

SO
N 

ST

S D
OU

GL
AS

 ST

S BADGER AV

W FOURTH ST S M
EM

OR
IA

L D
R

S L
OC

US
T S

T

N 
BE

NN
ET

T S
T

N 
DO

UG
LA

S 
ST

S O
UT

AG
AM

IE 
ST

S P
IE

RC
E A

V

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

N 
LO

CU
ST

 ST

LORAIN CT

W HARRIS ST

S V
IC

TO
RI

A S
T ALLEY

N 
FA

IR
 ST

ALLEY

Special Use Permit
Restaurant with Alcohol sales and service

1103 West College Avenue
Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
4-13-2022

Subject Area

± 0 100 20050 Feet



3-1
06

4

3-1
06

3

12
0

1109 1103

ALLEY

S S
UM

MI
T S

T

W COLLEGE AV Special Use Permit
Restaurant with Alcohol sales and service

1103 West College Avenue
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
4-13-2022

Subject Area

± 0 20 4010 Feet



H
ood

Food Prep Tables

Glass Storage 
w/drain

Ice Bin
w/drain

2 Basin Sink
supply/drain

Hand Wash
supply/drain

dishwasher

4 compartment sink

Floor Drain

Mop Sink

Fl
oo

r D
ra

in
 (t

ra
ug

h)

W
alk in cooler and freezer

81

Combi Oven

6 Burner Range

Deep Fryer

Flat Top Griddle

Deep Fryer

Deep Fryer

41

36

16

16

16

60

Hand
Sink

Food Prep 
Sink

Hand
Sink

40

17

Reach In Freezer

Office

Rinse

Dump

Hand Wash

Garbage

Ice

Liquer

Drain Board
w/storage 

Glass
Washer

FR2

Dump

Rinse

Ice

Liquer

Hand Wash

Garbage

Cabinet

Beer
Cooler

Beer Lines

Beer 
Cooler

Cabinet

Server station
reg base cabinet

Open Shelves

cooler

cabinet

Sink
Hand

24

36

36

12

re
g 

ba
se

 c
ab

in
et

S
er

ve
r s

ta
tio

n

O
pe

n 
S

he
lv

es

107

521
8

1427
8

224
2271

2

2171
4

Water station

552

2251
2

951
2

216

2261
4

1151
2

75

7261
8

197

2661
2

2541
2

1001
2



  

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

 

TO:  Finance Committee 

   

FROM: Jeri Ohman, Finance Director 

   

DATE: April 19, 2022 

 

RE:  Request to Approve Budget Amendment for Fire Truck Purchase  

 

 

The Appleton Fire Department (AFD) is requesting to purchase a PUC Engine prior to May 1, 

2022 to avoid a 7% price increase and any subsequent inflationary price increases that may occur 

later this year.  The purchase price details are: 

 

Purchase Date Price Prepayment 

Savings 

Final Purchase 

Price 

Total 

Savings 

Prior to May 1, 2022 $790,800 $35,000 $755,800 $90,200* 

After May 1, 2022 $846,000 $38,000 $808,000 $38,000 

 

*Total Savings amount reflects the savings of $55,200 for purchasing prior to May 1st plus the 

prepayment savings of $35,000. 

 

The purchase price of the vehicle, if ordered before May 1st and applying the prepayment 

savings, would be $755,800.  The source of funding requested is a combination of CEA 

Replacement funds and an increase in the amount of general obligation debt issued in 2022 as 

follows: 

  

 CEA Replacement Fund $410,800 

 Debt Proceeds   $345,000 

  Purchase Price  $755,800 

 

This item was approved by the CEA Review Committee on April 11, 2022.  A copy of that 

memo is attached for your review. 

 

Thank you for your consideration of this budget adjustment.  Feel free to contact me if you have 

questions. 



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

April 06, 2022 

To: Katie Van Zeeland, Chair – Safety & Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From: Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Cc: Ryan Weyers, Deputy Fire Chief 

Re: Request to Purchase Fire Truck via Sole Source 

 

 
The Appleton Fire Department (AFD) is requesting to purchase a PUC Engine prior to May 1, 2022 to avoid a 7% price 
increase and any subsequent inflationary price increases that may occur later this year. Lead time for receiving a fire 
truck after it is ordered has increased from 17 to about 23 months.  Here is a quick cost breakdown: 
 

Purchase Date Price Savings before May 1st 

Prior to May 1, 2022 $790,800 $55,200 

After May 1, 2022 $846,000  

 
Under this scenario, no payment would be required until delivery. However, prepayment discounts are available based 
on interest rates. The estimated prepayment saving is: 
 

Purchase Date Price Savings before May 1st Prepayment Savings Total Savings 

Prior to May 1, 2022 $790,800 $55,200 $35,000 $90,200 

After May 1, 2022 $846,000  $38,000 $38,000 

 
Historically, the city has exercised the prepayment option.  I have no doubt this option will exists in the future.  Which 
brings the known savings to $ 55,200 if we purchase the vehicle prior to May 1, 2022. What we don’t know is if there will 
be additional price increases between May 1st and the end of the year. 
 
The AFD has purchased identical PUC Engine in 2017 and 2019. This would be the third nearly identical vehicle 
purchased. The department has identified that standardizing our fleet will improve efficiencies and safety by providing 
consistency from one truck to the next for personnel moving from one station to another. Efficiencies will also be gained 
relating to maintenance of the vehicles. By ordering the same PUC Engine, the department will save significant staff time 
by eliminating the need to develop specifications for each truck. The department will also save significant staff time 
training on the new truck prior to putting it in service. 
 

View our current job openings at governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi 

CITY OF APPLETON 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

(920) 832-5810 (920) 832-5830 
700 N. Drew Street 

Appleton, WI 54911 
jeremy.hansen@appleton.org 

 

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/appletonwi
mailto:jeremy.hansen@appleton.org


 

Page 2 of 2 

 

The AFD has a long-standing relationship with Pierce Manufacturing and has seen the innovation, cooperation, improved 
pricing, as well as their commitment and direct involvement in the growth of our city. When the department has 
encountered issues with our vehicles, Pierce Manufacturing has been extremely responsive to our needs. 
 
Plans are currently underway to proceed with the order prior to May 1, 2022 to avoid the 7% price increase. Therefore, 
the AFD requests the approval to order and prepay the PUC Engine via sole source with Fire Apparatus & Equipment, 
Pierce Manufacturing. 

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-5810. Thank you for your 
consideration. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                     “…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

Department of Utilities  
Wastewater Treatment Plant 

2006 E Newberry Street 
Appleton, WI  54915-3128 

920-832-5945 tel. 
920-832-5949 fax  

 

To: Chairperson William Siebers and Members of the Finance Committee 

 

From: Utilities Deputy Director, Chris Stempa 

 

Date: April 7, 2022 

 

Re: Award the Sole Source Purchase of Grit Classifier System #2 Rebuild Parts 

through Saveco North America Inc. in the amount of $37,936. 

 

 

In 2000, a capital project was completed at the Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(AWWTP) that facilitated the transition from an aerated channel grit removal system to a 

circular vortex chamber and grit classifier system.  The original grit classifiers were 

manufactured by FSM Frankenberger GmbH & Co. Raw wastewater enters the Grit and 

Screenings Building (B-Building) from which it flows through one of three mechanical bar 

screens where objects larger than 1/4 inch in diameter are removed.  The wastewater then 

flows into one or both vortex grit removal chambers. Air can be diffused into the channels 

ahead of the grit chambers to suspend the particulate organic material. Wastewater enters the 

vortex chamber tangentially, flows around the conical tank and exits parallel to the inlet. The 

heavy mineral solids or grit settle in the lower hopper from which it is transferred by self-

priming centrifugal pumps to the washing and classification system located inside of B-

Building. 

 

Following the failure of Grit Classifier #1 in early 2021, an inspection was conducted by the 

FSM equipment representative, Saveco North America Inc., to assess repair and/or 

replacement options.  A complete list of recommended Original Equipment Manufacturer 

(OEM) replacement parts was provided based on their inspection that could be incorporated 

into a maintenance project to restore operation and extend the useful life of the existing grit 

classifier system. 

 

In August 2021, Saveco North America Inc. (Saveco) provided a quotation for the necessary 

rebuild parts after completion of the equipment inspection. As the FSM grit classifier 

equipment OEM, Saveco is the sole distributor of these parts required for the rebuild work. 

The total quoted cost of the rebuild parts totaled $30,887 each.  As a comparison, the cost of a 

new grit classifiers totaled $60,000 (not installed).  That purchase was immediately acted upon 

following Finance Committee approval and Common Council sole source authorization.  

Unfortunately, the equipment was not received until March 2022 because of substantial supply 



Finance Committee Memo – AWWTP Grit Classifier Rebuild 

April 7, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

chain related delays (note that FSM equipment is manufactured in Germany) which impacted 

the timeline to advance procurement of the second girt classifier rebuild assembly.  

 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATIONS – OEM SOLE SOURCE PARTS & REBUILD 

SERVICES 

On March 25, 2022, Saveco provided an updated quotation for the second and final grit 

classifier equipment rebuild assembly which totaled $37,936.  The 23% increase since August 

2021 is the result of stainless steel shortages internationally which have been compounded by 

the conflict in Ukraine. Since the girt classifier equipment is almost entirely comprised by 

stainless steel, the previously described impact on cost is greater than other types of goods.  

Similar increases for other stainless steel components have been observed with ongoing 

projects at the AWWTP.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

I am requesting sole source purchase award of Grit Classifier System #2 rebuild parts through 

Saveco North America Inc. in the amount of $37,936. 

 

If you have any questions or require additional information regarding this project please 

contact Chris Stempa at 920-832-5945.   



 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  4/11/2022 

 

RE: Action: Approve budget transfer of $28,160 from the Wastewater Utility Belt 

Filter project to fund the new Wastewater Sludge Thickening Building Fire Alarm 

modification CIP project.  

 

Action: Award contract to Faith Technologies in the amount of $28,160 for 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Sludge Thickening Building fire alarm system 

alterations. 

 

In 2022 the Wastewater Treatment Plant sludge thickening building’s tanks have undergone 

improvements. As a result of these improvements, the existing fire alarm system in the sludge 

thickening room has been impacted, requiring alterations to meet National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) requirements.  

 

In January 2022 the Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Management Department conducted a 

walkthrough of the code-required fire protection system alterations with three qualified fire 

protection contractors. Two of the three contractors have not responded to providing cost 

estimates to complete the alterations. The cost estimates were received as follows: 

 

Faith Technologies $28,160 

Best Defense Fire Protection & Security, Inc. No bid 

Legacy Communications No bid 

  

$21,800 of the cost estimate is comprised of explosion-proof rated materials and explosion-proof 

fire protection devices. Explosion-proof materials and equipment costs are two to three times 

more than standard materials and devices. The sludge thickening room is rated by the National 

Electrical Code as a Class 1 Division 2 area containing flammable gases or vapors in sufficient 

quantities to pose risk of explosion or ignition. Due to this classification, all materials and 

electric devices including fire protection devices shall be explosion-proof rated.  

 

The $41,900 balance of the CIP budget for the Receiving Station recoating and improvements 

(WWTP DAF Conversion Project) was part of the recently approved 2022 special consideration 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


budget carry-over to provide for additional funding needs for the Belt Filter Press upgrade 

contractor costs that will be bid later in 2022. The requested budget amendment will move 

$28,160 from the approved $41,900 budget to fund the cost of the required fire alarm 

modifications. The Finance Department, Utilities Department, and Parks, Recreation, and 

Facilities Management Department are in agreement and recommend awarding a contract to 

Faith Technologies in the amount of $28,160.  

 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 
 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Be awarded to:  

Name:  

Address:  

P.O. Box 117

In the amount of :

With a % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

$200,000.00

$200,000.00

04/11/22

Unit J-22 Mini Storm Sewer Construction

Valders, WI 54245

04/20/22

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$200,000.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

Alfson Excavating, LLC

14523 Clarks Mills Road

4/5/2022

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Curran K\Projects\2022\J-22 Mini Storm Sewer Program\Contract Award Form Unit J-22.xls



Bid Tabulation

J-22 Mini Storm Sewer Construction

03/28/2022 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

1 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Sewer 3400 lin.ft. $38.00 $129,200.00 $45.00 $153,000.00 $49.76 $169,184.00 $53.30 $181,220.00

2 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Lateral 700 lin.ft. $40.00 $28,000.00 $40.00 $28,000.00 $48.80 $34,160.00 $72.00 $50,400.00

3 Furnish & Install 4" Storm Riser 600 lin.ft. $45.00 $27,000.00 $35.00 $21,000.00 $46.70 $28,020.00 $54.50 $32,700.00

4 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Riser 100 lin.ft. $40.00 $4,000.00 $40.00 $4,000.00 $51.05 $5,105.00 $58.00 $5,800.00

5 Connect Sump Pump 10 each $100.00 $1,000.00 $150.00 $1,500.00 $250.00 $2,500.00 $200.00 $2,000.00

6 Furnish & Install Auger Section 900 lin.ft. $40.00 $36,000.00 $55.00 $49,500.00 $67.00 $60,300.00 $50.00 $45,000.00

7 Furnish & Construct PVC Yard Drain (Special Provisions 5.04.2) 5 each $500.00 $2,500.00 $1,760.00 $8,800.00 $1,540.00 $7,700.00 $1,075.00 $5,375.00

8 Furnish & Construct Concrete Yard Drain (Special Provisions 5.04.1) 1 each $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,400.00 $3,400.00 $1,950.00 $1,950.00 $2,350.00 $2,350.00

Base Bid Total: $228,700.00 $269,200.00 $308,919.00 $324,845.00

Highway Landscapers, Inc. Robert Immel ExcavatingBid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Alfson Excavating LLC Wood Sewer & Excavating



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Be awarded to:  

Name:  

Address:  

In the amount of :

With a 7.5 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

Green Bay, WI 54311

Unit X-22 Sewer & Water Reconstruction #2 

04/20/22

$661,325.00

$877,500.00

04/11/22

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$877,777.77

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$65,833.33

$943,611.10

Kruczek Construction Inc.

3636 Kewaunee Road

4/5/2022

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Buetow S\Projects\2022 Projects\X-22\Contract Award Form Unit X-22.xlsx



Bid Tabulation

X-22 Water Main Reconstruction
03/21/2022 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

1 12" Water Main 1950 lin. ft. $109.50 $213,525.00 $120.00 $234,000.00

2 8" Water Main 2850 lin. ft. $81.50 $232,275.00 $109.00 $310,650.00

3 6" Hydrant Lead 60 lin. ft. $132.00 $7,920.00 $80.00 $4,800.00

4 Hydrant 7 each $5,700.00 $39,900.00 $5,236.00 $36,652.00

5 12" Gate Valve 7 each $4,490.00 $31,430.00 $3,939.00 $27,573.00

6 8" Gate Valve 14 each $2,540.00 $35,560.00 $2,235.00 $31,290.00

7 6" Gate Valve 8 each $1,825.00 $14,600.00 $1,607.00 $12,856.00

8 4" Gate Valve 1 each $1,530.00 $1,530.00 $1,351.00 $1,351.00

9 12" Bend 8 each $1,050.00 $8,400.00 $1,000.00 $8,000.00

10 8" Bend 20 each $500.00 $10,000.00 $490.00 $9,800.00

11 1" Service 600 lin. ft. $81.75 $49,050.00 $78.50 $47,100.00

12 1 1/2" Service 140 lin. ft. $81.25 $11,375.00 $49.00 $6,860.00

13 4" Service 30 lin. ft. $164.00 $4,920.00 $104.50 $3,135.00

14 6" Service 30 lin. ft. $181.00 $5,430.00 $120.50 $3,615.00

15 Service Connection 40 each $555.00 $22,200.00 $653.00 $26,120.00

16 Curb Box (Complete) 40 each $400.00 $16,000.00 $159.00 $6,360.00

17 Pav't Markings Yellow 4" 250 lin. ft. $3.50 $875.00 $3.50 $875.00

18 Pav't Markings White 4" 250 lin. ft. $3.50 $875.00 $3.50 $875.00

19 Pav't Markings channel 8" 100 lin. ft. $5.75 $575.00 $5.75 $575.00

20 Pav't Markings Crosswalk 6" 20 lin. ft. $8.50 $170.00 $8.50 $170.00

21 Pav't Markings Stop Line 18" 20 lin. ft. $15.00 $300.00 $14.75 $295.00

22 Pav't Markings Symbols/Arrows 4 each $275.00 $1,100.00 $275.00 $1,100.00

23 Type "D-M" Inlet Protection 19 each $100.00 $1,900.00 $100.00 $1,900.00

24 12" Sediment Log 150 lin. ft. $10.00 $1,500.00 $7.50 $1,125.00

25 Trackout Control 220 sq. yd. $7.00 $1,540.00 $19.00 $4,180.00

26 Silt Fence 1400 lin. ft. $2.00 $2,800.00 $2.00 $2,800.00

27 3" HMA Apron 45 sq. yd. $51.00 $2,295.00 $94.50 $4,252.50

28 4" HMA Pavement 275 sq. yd. $35.00 $9,625.00 $47.50 $13,062.50

29 5" Concrete Apron 220 sq. yd. $60.00 $13,200.00 $67.50 $14,850.00

30 5" Concrete Sidewalk 60 sq. yd. $59.00 $3,540.00 $67.50 $4,050.00

31 7" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 200 sq. yd. $86.00 $17,200.00 $85.00 $17,000.00

32 8" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 450 sq. yd. $90.00 $40,500.00 $90.00 $40,500.00

33 Concrete Curb & Gutter 300 lin. ft. $40.00 $12,000.00 $50.00 $15,000.00

34 Truncated Dome 40 sq. ft. $35.00 $1,400.00 $40.00 $1,600.00

35 Temp. Traffic Control 1 l.s. $59,167.77 $59,167.77 $15,791.00 $15,791.00

36 Flowable Fill 25 cu. yd. $100.00 $2,500.00 $85.00 $2,125.00

37 Extra Stone Bedding 25 cu. yd. $24.00 $600.00 $35.00 $875.00

Base Bid Total: $877,777.77 $913,163.00

Bid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Kruczek Construction Inc. Advance Construction Inc.



Bid Tabulation

X-22 Water Main Reconstruction
03/21/2022 01:45 PM CDT

1 12" Water Main 1950 lin. ft.

2 8" Water Main 2850 lin. ft.

3 6" Hydrant Lead 60 lin. ft.

4 Hydrant 7 each

5 12" Gate Valve 7 each

6 8" Gate Valve 14 each

7 6" Gate Valve 8 each

8 4" Gate Valve 1 each

9 12" Bend 8 each

10 8" Bend 20 each

11 1" Service 600 lin. ft.

12 1 1/2" Service 140 lin. ft.

13 4" Service 30 lin. ft.

14 6" Service 30 lin. ft.

15 Service Connection 40 each

16 Curb Box (Complete) 40 each

17 Pav't Markings Yellow 4" 250 lin. ft.

18 Pav't Markings White 4" 250 lin. ft.

19 Pav't Markings channel 8" 100 lin. ft.

20 Pav't Markings Crosswalk 6" 20 lin. ft.

21 Pav't Markings Stop Line 18" 20 lin. ft.

22 Pav't Markings Symbols/Arrows 4 each

23 Type "D-M" Inlet Protection 19 each

24 12" Sediment Log 150 lin. ft.

25 Trackout Control 220 sq. yd.

26 Silt Fence 1400 lin. ft.

27 3" HMA Apron 45 sq. yd.

28 4" HMA Pavement 275 sq. yd.

29 5" Concrete Apron 220 sq. yd.

30 5" Concrete Sidewalk 60 sq. yd.

31 7" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 200 sq. yd.

32 8" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 450 sq. yd.

33 Concrete Curb & Gutter 300 lin. ft.

34 Truncated Dome 40 sq. ft.

35 Temp. Traffic Control 1 l.s.

36 Flowable Fill 25 cu. yd.

37 Extra Stone Bedding 25 cu. yd.

Base Bid Total:

Bid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

$114.00 $222,300.00 $130.00 $253,500.00

$105.00 $299,250.00 $125.00 $356,250.00

$97.00 $5,820.00 $100.00 $6,000.00

$5,050.00 $35,350.00 $5,319.00 $37,233.00

$3,950.00 $27,650.00 $4,267.00 $29,869.00

$2,260.00 $31,640.00 $2,446.00 $34,244.00

$1,635.00 $13,080.00 $1,754.00 $14,032.00

$1,400.00 $1,400.00 $1,463.00 $1,463.00

$970.00 $7,760.00 $824.00 $6,592.00

$500.00 $10,000.00 $441.00 $8,820.00

$90.00 $54,000.00 $80.00 $48,000.00

$72.00 $10,080.00 $60.00 $8,400.00

$180.00 $5,400.00 $189.00 $5,670.00

$195.00 $5,850.00 $206.00 $6,180.00

$765.00 $30,600.00 $595.00 $23,800.00

$405.00 $16,200.00 $304.00 $12,160.00

$0.95 $237.50 $3.70 $925.00

$0.95 $237.50 $3.70 $925.00

$5.15 $515.00 $6.10 $610.00

$10.30 $206.00 $9.00 $180.00

$10.30 $206.00 $15.60 $312.00

$155.00 $620.00 $290.00 $1,160.00

$103.00 $1,957.00 $100.00 $1,900.00

$7.70 $1,155.00 $10.80 $1,620.00

$4.60 $1,012.00 $20.00 $4,400.00

$2.00 $2,800.00 $2.20 $3,080.00

$55.00 $2,475.00 $67.10 $3,019.50

$55.00 $15,125.00 $67.10 $18,452.50

$64.00 $14,080.00 $65.50 $14,410.00

$60.00 $3,600.00 $65.50 $3,930.00

$91.00 $18,200.00 $93.50 $18,700.00

$96.00 $43,200.00 $98.80 $44,460.00

$48.00 $14,400.00 $42.20 $12,660.00

$35.00 $1,400.00 $35.90 $1,436.00

$14,619.00 $14,619.00 $17,684.00 $17,684.00

$83.00 $2,075.00 $85.00 $2,125.00

$20.00 $500.00 $28.00 $700.00

$915,000.00 $1,004,902.00

PTS Contractors, Inc Dorner Inc.



Bid Tabulation

X-22 Water Main Reconstruction
03/21/2022 01:45 PM CDT

1 12" Water Main 1950 lin. ft.

2 8" Water Main 2850 lin. ft.

3 6" Hydrant Lead 60 lin. ft.

4 Hydrant 7 each

5 12" Gate Valve 7 each

6 8" Gate Valve 14 each

7 6" Gate Valve 8 each

8 4" Gate Valve 1 each

9 12" Bend 8 each

10 8" Bend 20 each

11 1" Service 600 lin. ft.

12 1 1/2" Service 140 lin. ft.

13 4" Service 30 lin. ft.

14 6" Service 30 lin. ft.

15 Service Connection 40 each

16 Curb Box (Complete) 40 each

17 Pav't Markings Yellow 4" 250 lin. ft.

18 Pav't Markings White 4" 250 lin. ft.

19 Pav't Markings channel 8" 100 lin. ft.

20 Pav't Markings Crosswalk 6" 20 lin. ft.

21 Pav't Markings Stop Line 18" 20 lin. ft.

22 Pav't Markings Symbols/Arrows 4 each

23 Type "D-M" Inlet Protection 19 each

24 12" Sediment Log 150 lin. ft.

25 Trackout Control 220 sq. yd.

26 Silt Fence 1400 lin. ft.

27 3" HMA Apron 45 sq. yd.

28 4" HMA Pavement 275 sq. yd.

29 5" Concrete Apron 220 sq. yd.

30 5" Concrete Sidewalk 60 sq. yd.

31 7" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 200 sq. yd.

32 8" 3-Day H.E. Concrete Pavement 450 sq. yd.

33 Concrete Curb & Gutter 300 lin. ft.

34 Truncated Dome 40 sq. ft.

35 Temp. Traffic Control 1 l.s.

36 Flowable Fill 25 cu. yd.

37 Extra Stone Bedding 25 cu. yd.

Base Bid Total:

Bid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

$138.00 $269,100.00 $144.00 $280,800.00

$113.00 $322,050.00 $137.00 $390,450.00

$100.00 $6,000.00 $125.00 $7,500.00

$5,400.00 $37,800.00 $5,100.00 $35,700.00

$4,300.00 $30,100.00 $4,425.00 $30,975.00

$2,400.00 $33,600.00 $2,500.00 $35,000.00

$1,900.00 $15,200.00 $1,800.00 $14,400.00

$1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

$1,100.00 $8,800.00 $1,075.00 $8,600.00

$600.00 $12,000.00 $500.00 $10,000.00

$100.00 $60,000.00 $115.00 $69,000.00

$120.00 $16,800.00 $110.00 $15,400.00

$140.00 $4,200.00 $115.00 $3,450.00

$161.00 $4,830.00 $125.00 $3,750.00

$1,000.00 $40,000.00 $800.00 $32,000.00

$500.00 $20,000.00 $800.00 $32,000.00

$4.00 $1,000.00 $0.95 $237.50

$4.00 $1,000.00 $0.95 $237.50

$7.00 $700.00 $5.25 $525.00

$12.00 $240.00 $10.50 $210.00

$13.00 $260.00 $10.50 $210.00

$275.00 $1,100.00 $160.00 $640.00

$100.00 $1,900.00 $105.00 $1,995.00

$20.00 $3,000.00 $8.00 $1,200.00

$5.00 $1,100.00 $20.00 $4,400.00

$3.00 $4,200.00 $2.05 $2,870.00

$50.00 $2,250.00 $95.00 $4,275.00

$53.00 $14,575.00 $45.00 $12,375.00

$58.50 $12,870.00 $61.50 $13,530.00

$58.50 $3,510.00 $61.50 $3,690.00

$85.00 $17,000.00 $90.00 $18,000.00

$90.00 $40,500.00 $95.00 $42,750.00

$40.00 $12,000.00 $42.00 $12,600.00

$34.00 $1,360.00 $36.00 $1,440.00

$30,000.00 $30,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

$150.00 $3,750.00 $125.00 $3,125.00

$30.00 $750.00 $25.00 $625.00

$1,035,145.00 $1,110,460.00

Carl Bowers & Sons  Inc. Jossart Brothers, Inc.



Change Order No. 1

Date 04/06/22

Contract No. 11-22  for the following public work :

between    Kruczek Construction Inc. , 3636 Kewaunee Road Green Bay, WI 54311

      and the City of Appleton dated:  2/28/2022 is hereby changed in the following particular wit:

Current

Item Contract Current C.O. Amount Contingency New Contract New Contingency

No. Account No. Amount Contingency (+/-) (+/-) Total Total

1 5371.680905 $309,866.04 $23,239.95 $309,866.04 $23,239.95

2 5431.680903 $655,182.08  $49,138.66 $655,182.08 $49,138.66

3 5230.680904 $356,868.54 $26,765.14 $356,868.54 $26,765.14

4 5427.640800 $44,750.00 $3,356.25 $44,750.00 $3,356.25

5 ARPA Funds $0.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00

6 $0.00 $0.00

7 $0.00 $0.00

8 $0.00 $0.00

9 $0.00 $0.00

10 $0.00 $0.00

Total $1,366,666.66 $102,500.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $1,386,666.66 $102,500.00

 Reason for Change:

 

The Contract Time will be (increased / decreased / unchanged) by this Change Order: unchanged Days

The Date of Completion as of the date of this Change Order therefore is: unchanged

Finance Committee Agenda Date: 04/11/22

Date approved by Council: 04/20/22

CONTRACT AMENDMENT & CHANGE ORDER

Addition of ARPA funding to facilitate removal and replacement of public-side lead water services encountered during water main reconstruction.

(Contractor Name) (Contractor Address)

Unit W-22 Sewer and Water Reconstruction No. 1

J:\ENGINEERING\2ENGINEERS\Buetow S\Projects\2022 Projects\W-22\Change Order No 1 - Unit W-22.xlsx 4/6/2022



     
Department of Public Works – Engineering Division 

    
MEMO 

 
 

 
 
TO:  Utilities Committee 

 
FROM: Paula Vandehey, Director of Public Works 
  Sue Olson, Staff Engineer 
  Pete Neuberger, Staff Engineer 
   
DATE: April 4, 2022  
 
RE: Approval to single source and award 2022E stormwater consulting services contract 

for assistance with the Interstate 41 Reconstruction project to Brown and Caldwell in 
an amount not to exceed $30,000. 

_______________________________________________________________________________  
 
The Department of Public Works is requesting approval to single source and award 2022E 
stormwater consulting services contract for assistance with the Interstate 41 Reconstruction project 
to Brown and Caldwell (BC) in an amount not to exceed $30,000. 
 
DPW staff have been contacted by WisDOT’s stormwater consultant who are beginning the stormwater 
management planning and design for the Interstate 41 reconstruction project. BC is currently completing the 
update to the Citywide stormwater management plan and has the most current mapping and modeling 
available.  
 
Work under this contract will include: 

• Assist the City with providing the requested mapping, modeling and other data for both City 
and privately owned stormwater management practices impacted by WisDOT’s project 

• Communicate directly with WisDOT’s consultant on the City’s behalf 
• Attend meetings with WisDOT’s consultant as needed 
• Review proposed concepts and plans from WisDOT 
• Clarify impact of WisDOT plans on City TMDL requirements  
• Provide recommendations to the City on WisDOT proposed stormwater management plans 

 
The stormwater management plan for the Interstate 41 project may take several years to develop 
and additional contracts may be needed. Based on the work BC has already completed for the 
Citywide Stormwater Management Plan and their performance on past projects with the City, staff 
is recommending award of this project to BC. 
 
 



27-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-5 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO THE ERECTION OF OFFICIAL 
TRAFFIC SIGNS AND SIGNALS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 4-6-2022) 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to the erection of official traffic signs and signals, is hereby created as follows: 

 
INSTALL STOP SIGNS ON: 
 
 Wayne Street at Amelia Street 
 

 
Section 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

erect and maintain the appropriate standard traffic signs, signals and markings, giving notice of the 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

28-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-5 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO THE ERECTION OF OFFICIAL 
TRAFFIC SIGNS AND SIGNALS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 4-6-2022) 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to the erection of official traffic signs and signals, is hereby created as follows: 

 
INSTALL STOP SIGNS ON: 
 
 Chestnut Lane at Plank Road/Bedford Lane 



 
Section 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

erect and maintain the appropriate standard traffic signs, signals and markings, giving notice of the 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

29-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-5 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO THE ERECTION OF OFFICIAL 
TRAFFIC SIGNS AND SIGNALS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 4-6-2022) 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to the erection of official traffic signs and signals, is hereby created as follows: 

 
INSTALL STOP SIGNS ON: 
 
 Ridgehaven Lane at Osprey Drive 
 

 
Section 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

erect and maintain the appropriate standard traffic signs, signals and markings, giving notice of the 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

30-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-5 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO THE ERECTION OF OFFICIAL 
TRAFFIC SIGNS AND SIGNALS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 4-6-2022) 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 



 
Section 1:  That Section 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to the erection of official traffic signs and signals, is hereby created as follows: 

 
INSTALL YIELD SIGNS ON: 
 
 Zion Lane/Zion Court at Sequoia Drive 
 

 
Section 2:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

erect and maintain the appropriate standard traffic signs, signals and markings, giving notice of the 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

31-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-86 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO PARKING RESTRICTIONS. 

(Municipal Services Committee 4-6-2022) 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-86 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton, 

relating to parking restrictions, is hereby created as follows.  This ordinance supersedes and repeals 

any conflicting ordinance regarding parking in the designated area. 

 
Parking be prohibited on the south side of Harris Street from Mason Street to a point 
115 feet west of Mason Street. 
 
 
Section 2: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication, and upon its passage and publication, the Traffic Engineer is authorized and directed to 

make the necessary changes in the Parking District Map in accordance with this Ordinance. 



32-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19-112 OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO NON-METERED 
OFF-STREET PARKING. 

(Municipal Services Committee – 4-6-2022) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 

Section 1:  That Section 19-112 of Chapter 19 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton, relating to non-metered off-street parking, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 19-112. Non-metered off-street parking. 
 
 (a) The rates and regulations for non-metered off-street parking 
facilities owned by the City may be established by the Common Council and 
shall be on file in the office of the Department of Public Works. 
 
 (b) Any vehicle which has not been moved and/or is left unattended in 
any City-owned non-metered off-street parking facility for more than thirty (30) 
days shall be considered to be abandoned, and shall be dealt with pursuant to 
the provisions of Chapter 12, Article V of this Municipal Code. 
 
 (c) Jones Park Parking Lot:  5 a.m. – 11 p.m. 2-hour time limit.  No 
parking 11 p.m. – 5 a.m. 
 
 (d) Yellow Ramp: Overnight parking in the Yellow Ramp is 
permitted only on levels 6 and 7 (to become effective January 1, 2023). 
 
 (e) Yellow Ramp:  3-hour time limit in the western bay of level 1. 
 
Section 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication. 

33-22 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-205(b)(2) OF CHAPTER 23 OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO GENERAL 
PROVISIONS; OFFICIAL MAPS AND REVISIONS; OFFICIAL MAPS BASED ON 
OTHER STUDIES. 

(City Plan Commission – 4-20-2022) 



 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1:  That Section 23-205(b)(2) of Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Appleton, relating to general provisions; official maps and revisions; official maps based on other 

studies, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 23-205. General provisions. 
 

 (b) Official maps and revisions. The boundaries of all floodplain districts are 
designated as A, AE, AH, AO or A1-30 on the maps based on the Flood Insurance Study 
(FIS) listed below.  Any change to the base flood elevations (BFE) or any changes to the 
boundaries of the floodplain or floodway in the FIS or on the Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) must be reviewed and approved by the DNR and FEMA through the Letter of Map 
Change process (see Division 8 Amendments) before it is effective.  No changes to RFE's on 
non-FEMA maps shall be effective until approved by the DNR.  These maps and revisions 
are on file in the office of the Department of Public Works, City of Appleton.  If more than 
one map or revision is referenced, the most restrictive information shall apply.   

 
  (2) Official maps based on other studies.  Any maps referenced in this section 

must be approved by the DNR and be more restrictive than those based on 
the FIS at the site of the proposed development. 

 
   a. LOMR – Case #11-05-7670P, Floodway and Floodplain revisions 

between Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Cross Section AW to BA, 
Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panels 
55087C0318D and 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 2010. This reflects 
changes on the Fox River from just downstream of the Private Middle 
Dam to approximately 250 feet upstream of the Appleton Upper 
Dam. 

 
   b. LOMR – Case #13-05-7920P, Floodplain revisions between Flood 

Insurance Study (FIS) Cross Section AN to AM, Outagamie County 
Flood Insurance Rate panels 55087C0319D, dated July 22, 2010. 
This reflects changes along the south side of the Fox River from the 
College Avenue Bridge to approximately 850 feet downstream. 

 
   c. LOMR – Case #17-05-1963P. Floodplain revisions on Outagamie 

County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) AAL Tributary Cross Section C, 
Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) panel 
55087C0336D, effective September 29, 2017. This reflects changes 
along the AAL Tributary from just downstream of Lightning Drive to 
approximately 200 feet upstream of East Glenhurst Lane. 

 



   d. LOMR – Case #17-05-3854P. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie 
County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Fox River Cross Section AS 
through AW, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
panel 55087C0319D, effective February 16, 2018. This reflects 
changes along the Fox River from just upstream of railroad to just 
downstream of South Oneida Street. 

 
   e. LOMR – Case #20-05-2300P. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie 

County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) Apple Creek North Cross 
Section H through J, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) panel 55087C0328D, effective July 22, 2010. This reflects 
changes along Apple Creek North from approximately 1,440 feet 
downstream of Harrier Lance to approximately 160 feet downstream 
of Ballard Road. 

 
   f. CLOMR – Case #21-05-3029R. Floodplain revisions to Outagamie 

County Flood Insurance Study (FIS) AAL Tributary from just 
upstream of East Glenhurst Lane to approximately 500 feet upstream 
of Everbreeze Circle, Outagamie County Flood Insurance Rate Map 
(FIRM) panel 55087C0336D, effective November 1, 2021. 

 
   g. Kensington Pond Dam Failure analysis approved by the Department 

of Natural Resources on January 7, 2008, including: 
 
    1. Map dated July 2007 and titled “Figure 2, City of Appleton, 

Kensington Pond Dam Break Analysis, Hydraulic Shadow” 
(Hydraulic Shadow boundary from Cross Section 0.001 to 
4.84). 

 
    2. Floodway data table dated 8/28/2007 and titled “Table F-10, 

Maximum Water Surface Elevations, Kensington Pond Dam 
Break Analysis, City of Appleton”. 

 
    3. Flood profiles dated 7/10/2007 and titled “Figure 3, 

Maximum Water Surface Profiles” (Hydraulic Shadow profile 
from Garners Creek Sta 0 to Sta 25000). Revisions made as a 
result of DNR review and received from Pete Neuberger via 
email 2/23/2021. 

 
   h. Outagamie County Flood Storage District Map Panel 1 of 2 approved 

by Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and dated January 
20, 2016. Prepared by DNR, approved by DNR. 

 
Section 2:  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 

publication. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 4-6-22
	0002_1_April 2022 Misc Committee Reappts Memo
	0003_1_Notice of Public Hearing TA 1-22 Floodplain Ch. 23
	0004_1_All Tied Up Floral Cafe
	0005_1_Hilton Appleton Paper Valley-dumpsters
	0006_1_Hilton Appleton Paper Valley-storage container
	0007_1_CTH JJ-Lightning Dr to Cherryvale Ave
	0008_1_CTH E EE
	0010_1_400 block of W College Ave
	0011_1_300-400 block of N Division St
	0012_1_Parklet-N State St
	0013_1_Core's Lounge Complaint 3-29-22
	0013_2_Core's Lounge Lic. Status Letter
	0013_3_Core's Lounge Summons
	0013_4_Core's Lounge Revocation Hearing Exhibits 1-17 (No 10)
	0013_5_Core's Lounge Revocation Hearing- Report to the Common Council
	0014_1_04-06-22_Sole_Source_Engine
	0015_1_All Tied Up Floral Cafe
	0015_2_Resolution_324ECollegeAve_SUP3-22_SIGNED
	0016_1_Area 509
	0017_1_Tipsy Taco Tequila Bar
	0017_2_Resolution_127SMemorialDr_SUP2-22_SIGNED
	0018_1_Karen A Blodgett SL
	0019_1_Regina R Hueckman -2nd SL
	0020_1_Appleton Clark
	0021_1_Dairyland Brew Pub SL
	0022_1_StaffReport_AmendFloodplainOrd_AppleFields_CLOMR_For03-23-22
	0023_1_StaffReport_1103WCollegeAve_SUP_For04-13-22
	0024_1_2022 Fire Truck Purchase
	0024_2_04-06-22_Sole_Source_Engine
	0025_1_Grit Classifer Rebuild Work
	0026_1_2022 AWWTP Fire Alarm System Alterations
	0028_1_Award of Contract Unit J-22
	0029_1_Award of Contract Unit X-22
	0030_1_Unit W-22 Change Order No. 1
	0031_1_2022E Single Source 41 Reconstruction BC award
	Department of Public Works – Engineering Division
	MEMO

	0032_1_Ordinances to Council 4-20-22



